
 
 
 

SCRUTINY : GOVERNANCE, 
PERFORMANCE, BUSINESS CHANGE AND 

CORPORATE SERVICES 
 

4.00 pm TUESDAY, 3RD SEPTEMBER, 2019 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER 
 

A Pre-Meeting will take place in Conference Room 1 at 3.30 pm.   
This Meeting is for Committee Members only  

 
 

Please note that today’s Meeting will be recorded.  
  

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used 
for training purposes by the Democratic Services Department. 

 
The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber 

and using the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public are consenting to being 
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined 

above.   

 

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 

(01685) 725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda 
can be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations)  

 

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

3. Recommendations made by External Regulators   

 To consider report of the Deputy Chief Executive 
 

3 - 14 

4. Work Programme 2019-20   

 To consider the attached report 
 

15 - 24 

5. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions  

 

6. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting   

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 

7. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair   

  
COMPOSITION: Councillors:  T Skinner (Chair) 

                     G Lewis (Vice-Chair) 
  
 Councillors:   J Amos, H R Jones, D Sammon, 

W R Smith and C T Jones 
 
Co-optees:    J Beard, C Payne and E Wilkins-Campbell 

  
together with appropriate officers 
 

 

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Recommendations made by external regulators 
(WAO, CIW, ESTYN, WG Commissioners etc.). 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 A report on this subject was presented to Scrutiny Committee on the 09th April 2019. 

It was determined at that meeting that a follow up report be presented at a future 
meeting date scheduled for September 2019. 

 
1.2 This report provides an updated position regarding the monitoring, managing and 

implementation of external regulatory body recommendations and addresses the 
comments received from Scrutiny Committee of 09th April 2019. 

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 Scrutiny Committee receive this report and determines what further action they 

require. 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 This report is being presented today as it forms part of the scrutiny committee’s work 

programme. A report on this subject has previously been presented to Scrutiny 
Committee on the 09th April 2019. At that meeting a number of comments and 
suggestions were made by Members and it was determined that a follow-up report 
be presented to Scrutiny Committee in September 2019. 

 
3.2 As a Welsh Unitary Authority Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) is 

responsible for providing a wide and complex range of both statutory and non-

Date Written 27th August 2019 

Report Author Gary Evans 

Service Area Internal Audit 

Committee Date 03rd September 2019 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



statutory services to its citizens. To ensure that these services provide value for 
money and comply with their legislative and regulatory requirements as well 
providing best value and compliance with good practice they are regularly reviewed 
by a number of external audit and assessment regulatory bodies e.g. Wales Audit 
Office (WAO), the Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) and Estyn. 

 
3.3 These external reviews result in reports being published and provided to the Council, 

usually to a designated contact within the Council, with corresponding 
recommendations where applicable requiring implementation. 

 
3.4 The responsibility for monitoring and managing the implementation of external 

regulatory recommendations resides with the respective departments and 
responsible officers. 

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 Prior to January 2006 there was no central recording or monitoring system for 

internal audit or external audit/regulatory body recommendations and action plans. 
This was identified by the Internal Audit Service as a weakness in existing 
governance arrangements within the Council and it was determined to introduce 
measures to address this. 

 
4.2 The audit and inspection action plans (AAP) system was implemented across the 

Authority from April 2006. This system was introduced as a means of focussing 
attention on the implementation of internal audit, external audit and inspection 
recommendations and action plans. 

 
4.3 The AAP system was intended to be utilised and operated by the Internal Audit 

Service and by MTCBC management on a wider scale. There were two distinct 
aspects to the system: 

 Monitoring, management and reporting of internal audit recommendations; and 

 Monitoring, management and reporting of external audit and inspection agency 
recommendations. 

 
4.4 Internal Audit is responsible for updating the AAP system with all internal audit 

recommendations and for monitoring and managing their implementation by service 
areas. 

 
4.5 Officers from all other departments are required to update their respective AAP with 

recommendations from other agencies e.g. WAO, CIW, Estyn.  
 
4.6 Overall monitoring of the AAP system was undertaken by the Internal Audit Service 

with annual reports being presented to the Audit Committee. 
 
4.7 Managers were reminded by the Internal Audit Service to update their AAP’s 

periodically and again specifically before progress on implementation was reported 
to the Audit Committee. 

 
4.8 The Wales Audit Office undertook a review of the Council’s Service Improvement 

Framework in 2015/2016 which included an assessment of the existing AAP system 
and reported upon their findings in their Annual Improvement Report for 2015/2016. 

 
Page 4



4.9 Their published findings reported that the Council had a corporate mechanism in 
place for recording the recommendations made in all external and internal audit 
reports, the AAP system. They also made some criticism of the existing 
arrangements at that time in responding to external regulatory reports and reported 
that the Council was already aware of these and was working on introducing 
improvements. 

 
4.10 In view of their findings the WAO made a proposal for improvement in the Annual 

Report 2015/2016 that required addressing by the Council. The proposal for 
improvement was: 

 
 “The Council strengthens its arrangements for responding to external regulatory 

reports by: 

 Clarifying its process for dealing with reports that are received; and 

 Clarifying the role of committees when receiving reports, and ensuring there is 
appropriate challenge and clear monitoring of the Council’s progress in 
addressing any recommendations.” 

 
4.11 In response to the proposal for improvement MTCBC Corporate Management Team 

introduced a revised procedure that was introduced corporately in March 2017. A 
copy of the procedure is attached as Appendix 1.  This now requires managers in 
receipt of external agency report recommendations to report their progress in 
implementing said recommendations to Corporate Management Team and the Audit 
Committee. To date the focus has pre-dominantly been on reports produced by 
WAO. 

 
4.12 Implementation of the revised corporate procedure further highlighted weaknesses 

with the existing AAP system that had already been identified. A new modernised 
AAP system was commissioned to be produced by Internal Audit with the Council’s 
ICT Department. Several departments were chosen as pilot sites to assess the new 
system during 2018 and provide feedback before full roll-out commenced. 

 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 An earlier report on this subject was presented to Scrutiny Committee on the 09th 

April 2019. At that meeting a number of comments and suggestions were made by 
Members on the report and accompanying appendices and it was determined that a 
follow-up report be presented to Scrutiny Committee in September 2019. 

 
5.2 The comments, suggestions and minuted action points are attached as Appendix 2 

to this report as an action plan which also provides an up-to-date position regarding 
the actions taken to date in response.  

 
5.3 The new AAP system has been introduced throughout Council departments since 

July 2019, Internal Audit staff members are currently engaging in training exercises 
with departments on the operation of this system. A training record is maintained by 
Internal Audit and is attached as appendix 3. To summarise the information in 
appendix 3 there have been 33 departmental areas identified as requiring training to 
date and of those: 

 

 8 (24%) have received training since the roll-out commenced in July 2019; 

 3 (9%) have confirmed dates for training to be provided; and 
Page 5



 22 (67%) are included in a forward work programme with training dates to be 
confirmed. 

 
5.3 To date progress on recommendations has been made on a regular periodic basis to 

Corporate Management Team and Audit Committee on WAO reports and this has 
proven to be effective in generating improvement. Next steps need to include the 
reporting of other agency reports.  

 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 The reporting of all agency reports on a regular periodic basis as per the revised 

procedure. To date the focus had been on WAO reports to assess how the system 
was operating. 

 
6.2 Establishing the procedure as an embedded process across all relevant departments 

that does not require the current level of prompting or ‘chase up’ from a central 
department. 

 
6.3 Completion of Governance Scrutiny Committee comments and suggestions included 

in the action plan by the end of September 2019. 
 
6.4 Full roll-out of the new AAP system completed as soon as possible. This requires 

confirmation of training dates from Council departments. 
 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 To date the Internal Audit Service has voluntarily adopted the responsibility for 

creating, introducing, monitoring, prompting and reporting upon departmental and 
corporate progress. The time involved in this process is treated as an ‘overhead’ by 
Internal Audit as it takes time away from the primary role of providing assurance, 
however it is felt it is a worthwhile exercise as it ultimately improves and strengthens 
the governance framework of the Council.  

 
7.2 From the 01st April 2019 the Internal Audit Service is no longer employed by MTCBC 

directly as all staff members have transferred to the new Regional Internal Audit 
Shared Service established in collaboration with Rhondda Cynon Taf CC, Bridgend 
CC and the Vale of Glamorgan CC. A meeting was held between senior 
representatives of the Regional Internal Audit Shared Service and senior officers of 
MTCBC on the 01st July 2019 to reach a decision as to how the AAP system will be 
monitored on a longer term basis including the reporting of other agency reports and 
recommendations. It was decided that for the present time the Regional Internal 
Audit Shared Service will continue to monitor the system. 

 
7.3 Continue the reporting of WAO recommendations to Corporate Management Team 

and to expand this to include all external regulatory agency reports. 
 
7.4 Once reports and recommendations have been reported to Corporate Management 

Team and clear action plans determined follow up reports to be provided to the Audit 
Committee and relevant Scrutiny Committee. 

 

Page 6



7.5 Complete the action plan created from comments and suggestions received from 
Governance Scrutiny Committee and provide a follow up report, if Committee 
requires it, to a future Governance Scrutiny Committee. 

 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

8.1 Improvements in the MTCBC’s governance framework will positively contribute to all 
Wellbeing Objectives.  

 
 
 
 
 
ELLIS COOPER  
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY 
CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE 

& CORPORATE SERVICES 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Audit Committee report 
09th January 2017 

 
WAO Annual 

Improvement Report 
2015-2016 

 

09th January 2017 
 
 

2015-2016 

Members Library 
 
 

Internal Audit office 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 

Page 7



Appendix 1 
 

EXTERNAL REGULATORY REPORTS - REPORTING AND MONITORING PROCEDURES  

Receipt and Distribution of Reports 

•  External regulatory reports are normally received by the Chief Executive and 

forwarded to the relevant Chief Officer or Head of Service. E.g. Estyn reports 

referred to the Chief Education Officer, CSSIW reports to the Chief Officer 

Social Services and WAO reports to the Head of Corporate Services and 

different Commissioner reports to relevant officers. Internal Audit need to be 

copied into the distribution email.  Any report received directly by Chief 

Officers/Heads of Service need to be forwarded to the Chief Executive and 

Internal Audit for information. 

•  All external reports received are reported to Corporate Management Team 

by the relevant Chief Officer/Head of Service (as per the distribution 

arrangements) 

•  Internal Audit will enter the report recommendations onto the Audit and 

Inspection Action Plan (AAP) system. (ICT are in the process of developing a 

new system to facilitate reporting and monitoring). 

•  Internal Audit will send an email to the responsible officer notifying them that 

the recommendations have been entered onto the AAP system.  The email 

contains a link to the location of the recommendations on the AAP system. 

•  The Audit Manager (responsible officer) is copied in so that arrangements 

can be made for the report to be included on the forward plan for audit 

committee. This does not prevent reports being presented to Cabinet, 

Council or Scrutiny Committee either before or after the report is taken to 

Audit Committee. 

It is proposed that Audit Committee’s role is clarified to: 

 Ensure that appropriate action has been taken to address the 

recommendation and if not why not. 

 Consider if the report needs to be referred to another Committee. 

 Determine if a further follow up report on progress is required by Audit 

Committee. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 8



Monitoring and Reporting Progress of Implementation of Recommendations  

 Recommendations made in external regulatory reports will be placed on the 

AAP system by Internal Audit. Chief Officers/Heads of Service will be notified 

when this has been done and will be required to update the AAP system with 

progress made in implementing the recommendations.  

 

 Periodically (timeframe to be determined but likely to be quarterly) Internal 

Audit will report the progress by management on the implementation of 

agreed recommendations contained within the AAP system to Audit 

Committee. This report will highlight those areas where progress on 

implementation is not being achieved as agreed and allow Members to 

decide who to invite to Audit Committee to report on the level of progress 

achieved etc. 

 

•  Depending on the nature of the report and the recommendations made, 

Audit Committee may recommend that an update also be reported to the 

relevant Scrutiny Committee.  

 Internal Audit will explore a mechanism to ensure that all regulatory reports 

are identified and recorded on the AAP system. 

 

(Proposals in italics below are subject to the new system being developed 

with this functionality.) 

•  Chief Officers / Heads of Service will receive notifications from the AAP 

system when recommendations, which should have been implemented as 

per the due date, have not been implemented.   

•  Various reports will be available from the AAP system which to be used by 

Corporate Management Team, Senior Officers and Councillors to identify 

and monitor progress in implementing recommendations made within their 

service area.  (Training / guidance will be provided upon introduction of the 

new AAP system).  

 On an annual basis, Internal Audit will provide Audit Committee with an 

update on progress that has been made in implementing recommendations 

made in all external regulatory reports. 

 
 

Page 9



Appendix 2 

 

Action Action 
Owner 

Complete 
by 

Progress 

Discuss key issues identified 
by Governance Committee 
linked to the Audit Action 
Plan process/system  and the 
role of the Shared Audit 
Service moving forward 

Corporate 
Management 
Team 

ASAP – 
Priority 

Completed: 
A meeting was held in July 
2019 between key chief 
officers and senior officers 
of MTCBC and the Regional 
Internal Audit Shared 
Service (RIASS). The 
decision was made that due 
to MTCBC not having 
sufficient resource at 
present to accommodate 
the operation and 
monitoring of external 
recommendations on the 
AAP system that the RIASS 
would continue to 
undertake this role until 
such time as MTCBC could 
take ownership of the 
function. 
 

Members requested 
clarification on the content of 
the Appendices 
accompanying the report 
(e.g.) AAP process, findings 
and conclusions identified 

Gary Evans/ 
Shared Audit 
Service 

ASAP Ongoing: 
Monitoring is continuing and 
the content of the previous 
appendices tables has been 
updated but requires further 
scrutiny by Internal Audit 
before reporting findings to 
Committee. Planned 
completion date end of 
September 2019. 

Meeting to discuss topic-
specific issues linked to Social 
Services listed in the report 

Cllr Smith/ 
Gary Evans/ 
Lisa Curtis-
Jones 

ASAP Ongoing: 
Meeting has been held 
between all parties. The Audit 
Manager is discussing a 
solution with Scrutiny Support 
Officers.  Planned completion 
date end of September 2019. 

Page 10



Use feedback received from 
Committee to critically 
review the current AAP 
system to seek 
improvements 

Gary Evans/ 
Shared Audit 
Service 

As 
appropriate 

Ongoing: 
The new AAP system has been 
‘rolled out’ across 
departments since July 2019. 
Training is provided during 
‘roll out’ and feedback is used 
to identify improvements. 

Shared Audit Service to 
return to Governance 
Scrutiny Committee to offer 
an update on progress 

Gary Evans/ 
Shared Audit 
Service 

September 
2019 

Ongoing: 
Update being provided on the 
03rd September 2019. 

Develop a more regular 
sector-specific mechanism 
linked to the 
recommendations received 
and monitoring progress 

CMT / Shared 
Audit Service 

TO BE 
CONFIRMED 

Ongoing: 
Meeting with Scrutiny Support 
Officers has been held. The 
Audit Manager is discussing a 
solution with Scrutiny Support 
Officers.  Planned completion 
date end of September 2019. 

 

Page 11



Appendix 3 
 

 
    

 
 

NEW AAP SYSTEM TRAINING MONITORING RECORD 
 

 
 

Service 
Area 

Date of Training Comments 

 

1 
School 
Improvement 

Forward work 
programme being 

compiled 

These are recommendations deriving from ESTYN 
Reports and Grant Audits. Key officers requiring 
training to be identified. 

 

2 Schools 
Forward work 

programme being 
compiled 

Number of schools. Action has been taken on many of 
the P1 recommendations due to follow up exercise. 
Key officers requiring training to be identified. 

 

3 Accountancy 
Piloted area 

training provided 
during pilot phase 

Group Accountant (AP) has already received training 
and is comfortable with using the system. AP to train 
relevant staff on new system. 

 

4 
Children 
Services 

Forward work 
programme being 

compiled 

Several different service areas within this folder group, 
some of which are external regulatory reports. Key 
officers requiring training to be identified. 

 

5 
Adult 
Services 

Forward work 
programme being 

compiled 

Several different service areas within this folder group, 
some of which are external regulatory reports. Key 
officers requiring training to be identified. 

 

6 Housing 
Forward work 

programme being 
compiled 

Several different service areas within this folder group, 
some of which are external regulatory reports. Key 
officers requiring training to be identified. 

 

7 
Democratic 
and Scrutiny 
Services 

Forward work 
programme being 

compiled 

All reports in this folder group are external regulatory 
reports. Follow up exercise undertaken as part of 
external regulatory monitoring. Key officers requiring 
training to be identified. 

 

8 Safeguarding 
Forward work 

programme being 
compiled 

All reports in this folder group are external regulatory 
reports. Follow up exercise undertaken as part of 
external regulatory monitoring. Key officers requiring 
training to be identified. 

 

9 
Revenues 
Services 

23/08/2019 
Training provided to Mark Price and guidance notes 
sent. MP confirmed he will provide training to relevant 
staff. 

 

10 
Corporate 
Service 
Support 

16/08/2019 
Training provided to Sian Thomas and guidance notes 
sent. 

 

11 Payroll 
Piloted area 

training provided 
during pilot phase 

Payroll Manager (David Jones) has already tested the 
system.  

 

12 
Human 
Resources 

Forward work 
programme being 

compiled 

Training to be provided to Head of Human Resources 
(Fran Donnelly). 

 

13 Payments 
Piloted area 

training provided 
during pilot phase 

Payments Supervisor (Huw Sims) has already tested 
the system. 

 

14 
Business 
Change 

Training to be 
provided on 
13/09/2019 

Training to be provided to Kerry O'Donovan and 
Andrew Mogford. 

Page 12



 

15 
Community 
Safety 

Forward work 
programme being 

compiled 

Original 'owners' of the recommendations left the 
Authority (Steve Peters and Julian Pike). In the 
process of identifying new 'owners' for the 
recommendations so training can be provided. 

 

16 
Leisure 
Services 

Forward work 
programme being 

compiled 
Training to be provided to John Sellwood.  

 

17 
Waste 
Treatment 

Forward work 
programme being 

compiled 
Training to be provided to Stephen Thomas.  

 

18 
Youth and 
Social 
Regeneration 

Forward work 
programme being 

compiled 
Training to be provided to Chris Hole. 

 

19 
Licensing 
and Trading 
Standards 

Email sent 
14/08/2018 - 

Awaiting response 
Training to be provided to Paul Lewis. 

 

20 Public Health 
Forward work 

programme being 
compiled 

Training to be provided to Sue Gow. 

 

21 
Community 
Regeneration 

Forward work 
programme being 

compiled 
Training to be provided to Chris Long. 

 

22 ICT Services 15/08/2019 
Training provided to Ryan James and guidance notes 
sent. 

 

23 Legal 14/08/2019 
Training provided to Lisa Richards and guidance notes 
sent. 

 

24 Planning 
Forward work 

programme being 
compiled 

Training to be provided to Judith Jones. 

 

25 Performance 
Training to be 
provided on 
13/09/2019 

Training to be provided to Kerry O'Donovan. 

 

26 Procurement 
Forward work 

programme being 
compiled 

Training to be provided to Paul Davies. 

 

27 

Housing 
Benefit & 
Council Tax 
Reduction 

Email sent 
14/08/2018 - 

Awaiting response 
Training to be provided to Liz French 

 

28 Equalities 
Training to be 
provided on 
13/09/2019 

Training to be provided to Kerry O'Donovan 

 

29 Internal Audit 
Piloted area 

training provided 
during pilot phase 

Piloted area staff trained. 

 

30 
Local 
Education 
Authority 

Forward work 
programme being 

compiled 
Training to be provided to Jo Lewis. 

 

31 
Emergency 
Planning 

Forward work 
programme being 

compiled 
Training to be provided to Rob Gough. 

Page 13



 

32 Insurance 
Forward work 

programme being 
compiled 

Training to be provided to Huw Davies. 

 

33 
Corporate 
Risks 

Forward work 
programme being 

compiled 
Training to be provided to Mick Campbell. 

 
    

 
    

 
 Summary  

 

 
Total areas 
to be trained 

33 
 

 
 

Training 
completed 

8 (24%) 
 

 

 

Training 
dates 
arranged 

3 (9%) 
 

 

 

Forward 
work 
programme 

22 (67%) 
 

 
 

Page 14



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Work Programme 2019/20  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind Scrutiny Committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the attached Work Programme and approves, revises or 
amends it as deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions at 3.7 in planning 
for the next meeting.  

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached work programme identifies the topics and issues under consideration 
by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional subjects to be 
identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

Date Written 16th August 2019 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 3rd September 2019 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



 
3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 

help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.  
 
The key outcomes for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination.  
 
The key outcomes for Working Life are:  
 

 Merthyr Tydfil realises its full economic potential, with a skilled workforce and 
better employment opportunities; 

 People value and enjoy the built and natural environment, protecting and 
enhancing our cultural assets for current and future generations;  

 We have strong, resilient and supportive communities where people take 
responsibility for their own actions and how they affect others.  

 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside.  
 
 The key outcomes for Environmental Wellbeing are:  
 

 Environmental damage is minimised by preventing pollution 

 To maximise the amount of materials and resources recycled in line with the 
waste hierarchy; 

 Merthyr Tydfil has good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure 
and open spaces; and 

 The use of renewable and low carbon energy is increased.  
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  
 
The key outcomes for Living Well are: 
 

 People live safe and independent lives within their communities 

 Children and adults are safeguarded from harm and feel safe 

 Children and young people live safely with their family or close to home and 
have transitioned well into adulthood. 

 

 

Page 16



3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 
that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 
matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 

the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a Scrutiny Work Programme? 

a. Does this item/topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s wellbeing 
objectives and priorities? 

b. Is this item/topic relating to service performance concerns? 
c. Is this item/topic of significant public interest? 
d. Has the item/topic got budgetary implications? 
e. Is this a item/topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
f. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the Committee? 

            This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 
a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 

department; 
 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose; 

 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 
major issue; 

d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 
investigation / review; 

e. to explore possible solutions to an issue. 
 

Q) What outcome is the Committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 

Page 17



c. To receive an overview presentation. 
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy / strategy 
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives / other plan / other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the Committee need to fulfil this role / achieve 
this outcome?  

What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas / 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 

Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations? 

The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate / Cabinet 
Member / External Partner etc prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the Committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending ensure that they have the information / answer 
ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format / venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

 Meetings do not have to be held in a formal committee room environment. 
You may wish to hold occasional meetings out in the community e.g. 
community centres, sports facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some 
people find the formal setting intimidating. Site visits for example may be more 
appropriate to see first-hand what the committee is investigating / obtaining 
information on e.g. waste sites, regeneration projects etc. 

 
Q) Method of Scrutiny? 

 Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 

b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 

c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 
to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 

e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 

Page 18



f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 

g. Seeking the views of service users/carers and/or the general public (public 
calls for evidence). 

 
 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

4th April 2018 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 4th April 2018  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2694/Public%20reports%20pack%2004th-Apr-2018%2017.30%20Full%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=0


 

 

APPENDIX I 

Page 20



Governance, Performance, Business Change, and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

 
Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet 

Member 
Scrutiny Focus 

 
 

21st May 2019 

Draft Committee Work 

Programme 2018/19 

 

Cllr Tanya Skinner 

(Chair) and Scrutiny 

Committee Members 

The Committee to discuss the draft Work Programme and to officially agree and sign off the 

Work Programme for 2019-2020. 

 

Tackling Poverty Strategy 
and Action Plan 

Sue Walker/Alyn 
Owen/Lisa Curtis-Jones 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Following presentation of a report at the Governance Scrutiny 
meeting of 26th February 2019; Committee Members stated they required more details and 
wanted sight of the Tackling Poverty Strategy document  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2nd July 2019 

Draft Annual Governance 
Statement 
 

Gary Evans (Shared 
Audit Service)  

Scrutiny & Challenge:- To provide Committee Members the opportunity to review the  Draft 
Annual Governance Statement document and to constructively challenge its 
contents/findings prior to its’ presentation to Full Council. 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan: Living Well Theme 
 

Cllr Chris Davies / Lisa 
Curtis-Jones 

Scrutiny & Challenge: -  At the scrutiny meeting held on 10th July 2018, Committee Members 

requested the Living Well theme within the Corporate Plan be presented at Governance 

Scrutiny, with a specific focus on the following element which were highlighted when the 

report last came before the Committee: 

 The current financial position and details of any early indicators of projected overspend; 

 An update on the developing WCCIS data management system and how data-related 

issues experienced last year have been addressed; 

 The current status of the ‘butterfly’ model of adult social care which was brought to the 

Committee’s attention in the last thematic update reports; and 

 An overview of progress made linked to the priority identified last year around the 

further development of partnership working arrangements at the Community Zone, 

Gurnos. 

Welsh National Library 
Standards 

Jane Sellwood / John 
Sellwood 

Scrutiny & Challenge:   The Council has a responsibility to respond to the 1964 Libraries and 
Museum Act.  The Welsh Public Library Standards are the method by which the minister with 
responsibility for Library Services is able to measure whether an authority is complying with 
its statutory duty.  This report is required to be reviewed by the committee on order to meet 
the requirement for ratification of the Welsh Public Library Standards.  The Committee will 
be required to review the content of the return documents, review and challenge the 
information received (where applicable), prior to its submission to Welsh Government 

 

P
age 21



Governance, Performance, Business Change, and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

 
Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet 

Member 
Scrutiny Focus 

 
2nd July 2019 

Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny & Challenge:  The Committee will review the items due to be presented at the next 

meeting, ensuring a clear brief outlining the Committee’s expectations is available to the 

report authors. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3rd September 2019 

Human Resources Cllr Andrew Barry / Fran 
Donnelly 

Scrutiny & Challenge:- WAO Report – Following on from the Improvement Assessment 
2015-16: Review of the Council’s Human Resources Function a report is requested from 
colleagues in HR to review the status of the following:  
* Single points of dependency across the Authority and the risk this poses;  
* Corporate sickness absence statistics over the last 3 years with a specific    
   focus on stress-related sickness absence;  
* A quarterly report on agency staff employed by the Council, including  
   financial details/costs; and 
* The early impact of decisions taken linked to VR and VER. 

Audit Action Plan:  
Recommendations made 
by external regulators 
(WAO, CSSIW, ESTYN, 
WG Commissioners 
etc.).  
 

Shared Audit Service / 
Steve Jones 

Scrutiny & Challenge:-  Following a report received at the Governance Scrutiny Meeting on 
9th April 2019; Committee Members requested a subsequent report outlining the current 
position with regards to at Audit Action Plan function outlining responses to regulatory 
recommendations received by the Council. 

Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny & Challenge:  The Committee will review the items due to be presented at the next 

meeting, ensuring a clear brief outlining the Committee’s expectations is available to the 

report authors. 

 

 
 

9th October 2019 

DRAFT Annual 
Performance Report 
 
 

Andrew Mogford Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Annual Performance Report is a statutory document which the 
Council MUST to publish to communicate its’ self-evaluation of delivery against our wellbeing 
objectives.  The Committee is requested to review the draft report and ‘test’ the evaluative 
judgments made by Chief Officers through constructively critical challenge. 
 

  

P
age 22

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/s34392/Wales%20Audit%20Office%20Report.pdf
http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/s34392/Wales%20Audit%20Office%20Report.pdf


Governance, Performance, Business Change, and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

 
Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet 

Member 
Scrutiny Focus 

 
 
 
 
 

9th October 2019 

Domestic Abuse and 
Sexual Violence  
 

Safer Merthyr Tydfil Scrutiny & Challenge: -  

Members will be offered an overview of Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and 

Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015.  The Committee seeks a report outlining the impact of 
domestic abuse and sexual violence on local people.  In relation to sexual violence, the 
Committee should outline the impact of sexual violence on communities (i.e.) STI’s; 
pregnancies; impact on mental health and offer basic detail on the support structure 
available for victims. 

Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny & Challenge:  The Committee will review the items due to be presented at the next 

meeting, ensuring a clear brief outlining the Committee’s expectations is available to the 

report authors. 

 
 
 
 
 

26th November 2019 

Local Authority Support 
to the Third Sector 
Services 

Cllr Tanya Skinner/Alyn 
Owen/Chris Long/Ryan 
Barry 

Monitoring & Scrutiny:  This item was originally received as a result of a WAO report. 
Subsequent to the item being discussed at the scrutiny meeting an email was sent to the 
Chief Executive and the Cabinet Portfolio Member. As a result of scrutiny’s involvement a 
report was submitted to the Governance Services Scrutiny Committee meeting on 13th 
February.  

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan – Working Life 
Theme 
 
 

Cllr Geraint Thomas / 
Alyn Owen / Chris Long 
/ Steve Peters 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - At the scrutiny meeting held on 9th April 2019, Committee Members 
requested the Working Life theme within the Corporate Plan be presented at Governance 
Scrutiny, with a specific focus on the following element: 
 

“Post-16 provision; how this links with Cwm Taf Public Services Board; and details of progress 
made on apprenticeships and partnership working”. 

Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny & Challenge:  The Committee will review the items due to be presented at the next 

meeting, ensuring a clear brief outlining the Committee’s expectations is available to the 

report authors. 

 
7th January 2020 

Change Programme  
 
 
 

Ellis Cooper / Andrew 
Mogford 

Scrutiny & Challenge: -   Scrutiny Members to review the ‘post-decision’ status of areas 
originally identified for financial savings and identified whether savings have been achieved, 
the impact of this service rationalisation etc. 

  

P
age 23



Governance, Performance, Business Change, and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

 
Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet 

Member 
Scrutiny Focus 

 
7th January 2020 

Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny & Challenge:  The Committee will review the items due to be presented at the next 

meeting, ensuring a clear brief outlining the Committee’s expectations is available to the 

report authors. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
25th February 2020 

Wellbeing Objective – 
Best Start to Life 
 
 

Sue Walker / Annabel 
Lloyd  

Scrutiny & Challenge: -   At the scrutiny meeting held on 26th February 2019, Committee 
Members requested the Best Start theme within the Corporate Plan be presented at 
Governance Scrutiny, with a specific focus on attainment levels across the County Borough 
 

Corporate Self-
Evaluation 2019-20 

 

Cllr Andrew Barry / 
Andrew Mogford 

Scrutiny & Challenge: -   Following the re-introduction of the Corporate Self-Evaluation 
Process in May 2019; Committee Members will receive a report outlining the key findings of 
the process on a directorate/service area basis.  Members will be advised on lessons learned 
during completion of the self-evaluation process (e.g.) any areas of good practice or issues or 
barriers identified; and the key priorities for improvement which will be actioned over the 
coming 12 months.  Committee Members will be required to review the self-evaluative 
judgment and seek evidence to support the accuracy of this judgment. 

Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny & Challenge:  The Committee will review the items due to be presented at the next 

meeting, ensuring a clear brief outlining the Committee’s expectations is available to the 

report authors. 

21
st

 April 2020 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan – Environmental 
Wellbeing 
 
 

Cllr David Hughes / 
Judith Jones 

Scrutiny & Challenge: -  At the scrutiny meeting held on 9th April 2019, Committee Members 
requested the Environmental Wellbeing theme within the Corporate Plan be presented at 
Governance Scrutiny, with a specific focus on the following element: 
 

“It has been almost 12 months since new measures were introduced.  Members want to 
explore whether there has been any increase of incidents of fly-tipping.  Have costs 
increased?  Does policy require change? (e.g. black bin charge; waste transfer note charge 
etc.)”. 

Statement of Wellbeing 
and Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan: Focus on the Future 

Andrew Mogford Scrutiny & Challenge: -  The Council is required to meet its statutory duty of refocusing and 
publishing  its Statement of Wellbeing and Corporate Wellbeing Plan annually.  Committee 
Members are required to scrutinise both of these documents to review how well the Council 
is meeting its requirements against the Wellbeing  of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny & Challenge:  The Committee will reflect on this year’s work programme and discuss 

how the 2020-2021 work programme will be developed 

 

P
age 24


	Agenda
	3 Recommendations made by External Regulators
	4 Work Programme 2019-20
	Appendix 1


